New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

2 b

Budget Hearing Minutes - m w
January 17, 2017 8(}: N cs
Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center = O &
Lo

Present: Mr. David A. Lawson, Chairperson & = g
Mrs. Angela C. Chastain = :

Mr. Robert Coppola - e

Mr. Bill Dahl = s

Mrs. Wendy Faulenbach
Mr. Dave Littlefield

Mr. Brian McCauley
Mrs. Tammy Mclnerney
Mr. J.T. Schemm

Ms. Roberta Pratt, Director of Technology

Mr. Kevin Munrett, Facilities Manager

Also Present: | Mr. Joshua Smith, Superintendent of Schools

Ms. Alisha DiCorpo, Assistant Superintendent of Schools

Ms. Ellamae Baldelli, Director of Human Resources

Mr. Anthony Giovannone, Director of Fiscal Services and Operations

Mrs. Laura Olson, Director of Pupil Personnel and Special Services

Mr. Greg Shugrue, New Milford High School Principal

Dr. Christopher Longo, Schaghticoke Middle School Principal
Mrs. Anne Bilko, Sarah Noble Intermediate School Principal
Mrs. Paula Kelleher, Hill & Plain Elementary School Principal
Mrs. Susan Murray, Northville Elementary School Principal

Call to Order

1. Pledge of Allegiance

The budget hearing meeting of the New Milford Board
of Education was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mr.
Lawson, Chairperson. The Pledge of Allegiance
immediately followed the call to order.

Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance

2. Presentation by Mr. Joshua Smith of the 2017-2018
School Budget

e Mr. Lawson said tonight’s presentation would
be the Superintendent, Elementary and
Intermediate Schools.

e Mr. Smith started out by thanking the
administrative team for their help in putting this

Presentation by Mr. Joshua Smith
of the 2017-2018 School Budget




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 2

budget together. He said the process started
back in September. He noted the goal was to put
together a budget with the school’s mission in
mind and to balance fiscal responsibility with
continued improvement.

e Mr. Smith shared the mission statement: The
mission of the New Milford Public Schools, a
collaborative partnership of students, educators,
family and community, is to prepare each and
every student to compete and excel in an ever-
changing world, embrace challenges with vigor,
respect and appreciate the worth of every human
being, and contribute to society by providing
effective instruction and dynamic curriculum,
offering a wide range of valuable experiences,
and inspiring students to pursue their dreams
and aspirations.

e Mr. Smith outlined some of the budget format
revisions which include the reduction of more
than 60% of the pages from prior years;
increased font size; digital format; granular
accounting; and staffing aligned to major object
and/or account codes. Staffing is now tied to
school buildings and programs.

e District quality results include being recognized
by the College Board AP District Honor Roll;
80% of AP test scores of 3 or higher, with a
30% increase in AP enrollment; high percentage
of students participating in athletics, performing
arts, clubs, activities; Project Lead the Way in
middle school; growth in mathematics
achievement; and reduction in at-risk students in
math and reading assessments for grades 1 — 8.
The summer program served 50 students in
grades 3 — 5 for math and language standards:
95% of students demonstrated measurable
growth in reading, 98% in math, and daily
attendance was over 80%.

e The district has invested over $275,000 in
Effective School Solutions (ESS), a therapeutic
program at New Milford High School, and 17
students are enrolled. Of those enrolled in the
program: discipline referrals are down 40%,




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 3

absences have dropped by 54%, and grades have
increased by 25%.

o Items left out of the budget for this fiscal year
include $300,000 in cuts after the referendum,
including two staffing reductions at
Schaghticoke; additional Spanish teacher for
Schaghticoke; weight room supervision at the
high school; second library media specialist at
the high school even though it was a NEASC
recommendation; and additional social workers.

e Budget challenges include the cost of medical
care. While relief was granted in this fiscal year
through the Town, that created a 0.8% increase
in this proposed budget. Other challenges
include anticipated response to an audit of the
district’s Social and Emotional Skills
framework; Public Act 14-196 which is
statewide legislation on abuse and assault
awareness; and a need to establish and fund
repair and replacement cycles.

e The District priorities for this budget include
preparing students for college and career
readiness; supporting students’ health and
wellness needs; updating and strengthening
district infrastructure; and enhancing
school/community partnerships.

e Budget-wise, 77% of the total is salaries and
benefits. Some savings have been generated by
moving all employees to a high deductible
health plan but that will still be a 1% increase in
the budget.

e This budget includes an overall net reduction of
one staff member. Grade 2 will lose one
position, grade 4 will lose two and grade 5 will
lose one. The needs of special education
students are becoming more complex even
though New Milford has been able to keep
many students in district. Additions include a
0.49 Special Education Department Chair for
PK-2, a 0.5 Board Certified Behavioral Analyst
for Sarah Noble, 1.0 World Language teacher at
Schaghticoke, 0.5 PE at the high school, and a
grant funded 0.5 Board Certified Behavioral
Analyst for the district.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 4

Things left out of this budget proposal include a
second library media specialist at the high
school; additional social workers; alternative
high school program; expansion of World
Language to grade 6; additional administrative
support for special education K-8; no new or
expanded programs.

Revenue will likely be reduced in the excess
cost reimbursement account as some students
have aged out and more are staying in district
which means the excess costs are lowered.
This budget is requesting 25% less in capital
reserve as the costs are now found in the
operating budget.

The overall budget increased as proposed is
3.7%.

3. Discussion of the 2017-2018 School Budget
including, but not limited to, Elementary Schools
and the Intermediate School

Mrs. Bilko, Principal of Sarah Noble
Intermediate School, started the presentation by
saying that she is excited to be here as she
represents a terrific staff. She said as they
prepared the budget for the K-5 schools they
kept the schools’ mission at the forefront. She
spotlighted academic highlights of the K-5
schools including the use of Teachers College
units of study for writing and reading; use of
exemplars in math investigations which helps
students learn problem solving skills; the use of
Mystery Science units in the science curriculum
which encourages hands on learning; continued
implementation of the Scientific Research
Based Intervention (SRBI); What I Need (WIN)
time for reading and math; and interventionist
work in K-2 math and reading.

Mr. Coppola asked how WIN was different
from intervention and Mrs. Bilko said all
children participate in WIN and each student is
encouraged to work at their level. The SRBI
students, about 15% of the population, receive
additional small group intervention work.

Discussion of the 2017-2018 School
Budget including, but not limited
to, Elementary Schools and the
Intermediate School




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 5

e Mrs. Murray, Principal of Northville
Elementary School, said professional
development sessions are held on the first
Thursday of the month. She said K-2 sessions
alternate between math and literacy using the
Teachers College units of study.

e Department meetings are also held to discuss
such topics as pre-school assessments or
standards for unified arts, as examples.

e Math, literacy and data coaches go into the
classrooms to co-teach, assist or observe.

e Tuesday meetings include professional learning
communities and professional development
working collaboratively on grade level goals
and standards.

e Mrs. Kelleher, Principal of Hill & Plain
Elementary School, highlighted the social
emotional support system for grades K-5 and
said the schools are teaching problem solving
skills and communication skills. She said there
has been a significant increase in anxiety among
children and the Guidance department works to
address that and other topics.

e Mrs. Bilko noted some school/community
highlights saying that 250 children are involved
in a student activity or intramural due to their
increased availability.

e Mrs. Murray said the morning arrival recess for
grades K-2 has helped focus students more for
the day and the schools continue to use
character education traits in the curriculum.

e Mrs. Kelleher said all buildings do things with
the community including Veteran’s Day
ceremonies, service projects, Lion’s Club
activities, and guest readers as part of Read
Across America.

e Mrs. Kelleher addressed the budget saying Math
Investigations will include the replacement of
consumables with more cost-effective
consumables and online resources; a library to
support Teachers College for each K-2 grade
level; and Northville has need of a cafeteria
table and six white board coatings for
chalkboards. Also technology has been moved




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 6

to the instructional supply line and funds have
been reallocated to be more transparent.

e Mr. Coppola thanked the principals for helping
to get KidSight into the schools. He asked about
the interventions in K-2 in terms of who does
them and what testing is used. Mrs. Murray said
the interventions are for students in tier 2 and 3
and WIN is for tier 1. She said the
interventionists meet with the students three to
five days a week and consult with the coaches.

e Mrs. Chastain asked if there was any parent
outreach for the social/emotional support and
Mrs. Kelleher said the district does parent
presentations and the schools and social workers
work with the families one-on-one.

e Mrs. Chastain asked if the regular education
students were able to get the same services as
special education students who need support
during the day and Mrs. Kelleher said the
guidance counselors work with all at-risk
students, not just the special education students.

e Mrs. Chastain asked if the coaches were able to
get to every classroom and Mrs. Kelleher said
the coaches are not regimented to a schedule.
They do cover all the classrooms and meet with
all grade levels.

e Mrs. Bilko said the interventionists are
prescriptive, as different teachers need different
things.

e Mrs. Murray said the coaches track their
activities so they know which classrooms they
are visiting and what they are doing in each
room.

e Mr. Coppola asked if supplies needed to be
purchased each year for Mystery Science and
Mrs. Murray said the supplies are commonly
found items such as paper plates, cotton balls.

e Mr. Coppola said he is impressed when he
walks into Sarah Noble and the light hits the
hangings on the ceiling. Mrs. Bilko said that is
part of a Legacy Project which has been done
with the help of the PTO.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26,2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 7

Mr. Coppola said he was pleased the mural from
Joe Spectre was able to be placed at Sarah
Noble.

Mr. Schemm asked if the Teachers College
Readers/Writers workshops were new to the
district and Mrs. Bilko said they are new to all
grade levels.

Mr. Schemm liked that the libraries were to be
shared across grade levels.

Mrs. Faulenbach thanked Mr. Smith for the
budget corrections. She noted the overall
increase for supplies on page 1 is 1.03% but she
could not get the same number when she added
up the totals. Mr. Smith said all the subgroups
should come to that total. Mr. Giovannone said
all the subgroups for the entire building should
add up to the 1.03% increase but he would pull
a report showing the supplies line items.

Mrs. Chastain asked if there was a job
description for the Special Education
Department Chair or the behavioralist. Mr.
Smith said there was one for the Special
Education Department Chair. Ms. Baldelli said
they would look at the contract to see what parts
they would keep for the behavioralist.

Mrs. Chastain asked how many students
participated in Excel and Mr. Smith said the
Pre-K program listed in the class size chart is
the Excel program.

Mr. McCauley asked if class sizes of 20.1
students in kindergarten was too many and Mr.
Smith said this number is anticipated, and the
only way to lower it would be to create two new
positions. He said although he would like to see
that number smaller, 20 is tolerable. Mr.
McCauley asked what the maximum number
would be and Mr. Smith said they are bumping
against it this year with 22 but they hired a tutor
for support.

Mrs. Mclnerney asked if the grade 2 teacher
would be eliminated from Hill and Plain. Mr.
Smith said yes, but it is too early to know which
teacher because all K-5 teachers are K-5




New Milford Board of Education Page 8
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26,2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

certified. There will be an FTE reduction at
HPS.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked about the 0.245
department chair and Mr. Smith explained that it
was half of the 0.49 split between the two
elementary schools.

e Mr. Schemm asked how confident the
administration was in the kindergarten
projection of 141. Mr. Smith said this number is
the least predictable because there is no
correlation between Excel and kindergarten. He
said there is no contingency in this budget for
kindergarten.

e M. Littlefield asked for clarification on the
0.245 positions and Mr. Smith said 0.49 is the
ceiling before the position goes into the
administrative bargaining unit.

e Mr. Coppola asked what the last day was for a
student to register for school and Mr. Smith said
students can register whenever they move to
town but generally the regular registration
sessions were in April-May. Mr. Coppola said
he did not want parents waiting until August.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked if the district was aware
of changes in enrollment since October and Mr.
Smith said the number is tracked monthly but
the demographics study for budget is based on
the official October 1* enrollment to the state.
Mrs. Faulenbach asked if that number has
changed dramatically and Mr. Smith said he
would bring the recent numbers to the next
meeting.

e Mr. Coppola said the 0.6 assistant principal was
probably not enough help and Mr. Smith said
there are complexities of the principal being
available when the assistant is not available. He
said the assistant is only available three days a
week.

e Mrs. Chastain asked what is in the supplies lines
and Mrs. Kelleher said one line includes math
books. ‘

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked what codes were the
supplies lines and Mr. Giovannone said the
codes were found in Appendix A. Mr. Smith




New Milford Board of Education Page 9
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

noted the schools were given a per student
allocation for supplies and they chose what
supplies their particular buildings needed.

e Mr. Coppola said in 56410 Reading the line was
down 49% and 56110 Math was down 50% and
asked why. Mrs. Kelleher said in relation to the
reading, the materials from John Pettibone were
distributed to Hill and Plain so they did not need
to purchase as much.

e Mrs. Chastain asked why line 51115 was up
$4,300 and Ms. Baldelli said the salary
increased by 2.75% and then that teacher or
teachers may also experience a step increase.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked about the 3% increase
for security and Mr. Giovannone said that was a
placeholder since this is currently out to bid.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked about the health line
increasing $13,000 and Mr. Giovannone said
that is a realignment of the educational aides,
specifically the nurse paras.

e Mr. Coppola said the Excel line 51201 was
increasing 44.9% and Mr. Smith said that is the ‘
anticipated student care workers to go along
with the continuation of the new Excel section.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked if there was a staffing
decrease at Northville and Mr. Smith said there
was not.

e Mrs. Faulenbach said there is a 7.85% increase
but the enrollment is comparable to Hill & Plain
and Mr. Smith said the certified salary line and
ins and outs of staffing year-to-year make up
that difference. This line is correct as of right
now. Mr. Smith also noted there is an addition
of a half time Special Education Department
Chair which has decreased at Sarah Noble.

e Mrs. Chastain asked why the art line is up 80%
and Mr. Smith said there had been a 0.8 teacher
at Northville and 0.2 at Schaghticoke but that
was difficult to work out in reality so this year
the position is 100% at Northville. Mrs.
Chastain asked why the full-time position was
being added if 0.8 was sufficient and Mr. Smith
said he didn’t know if 0.8 allowed for adequate
art time but also filling a 0.8 position is difficult.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 10

e Mr. Lawson said the budget is more than
numbers it is about children. Mrs. Faulenbach
said it is the Board’s responsibility to ask how
the numbers were arrived at. Mrs. Chastain said
a 4% increase is not going to pass.

e Mr. Coppola asked why line 53209 was
increasing by 128% and Mrs. Murray said it was
for subscriptions to IXL and Exemplar, which
are online services that can also be accessed
from home.

e Mrs. Chastain asked what the instructional
supply line increase of $3,000 included and
Mrs. Murray said that was the cafeteria tables.

e Mrs. Chastain asked why the speech line 51115
was up $30,000. Mrs. Olson said that was two
hires due to resignations, which required higher
pay to get quality replacements.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked about the Excel line
51115 which is up $131,000 and Ms. Baldelli
said it is to replace teachers that left and
includes 6.5 positions.

e Mr. Coppola noted the numbers are dropping
again at Sarah Noble and Mrs. Bilko said the
dip is in third grade noting last year two
positions were eliminated and in this budget two
more are eliminated.

e Mr. Coppola asked if the supply allocation was
due to less students and Mr. Smith said itis a
per student allocation and there are 40 less
students.

e Mrs. Chastain asked about the librarian at Sarah
Noble and Mr. Smith said the librarian left and a
new one was hired. He said $260,000 was
budgeted for turnover savings because most of
the time a person can be hired at a lower salary
except in difficult to fill positions.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked about the furniture and
fixtures and Mrs. Bilko said they need to begin
revamping the library for the smaller third
graders. This will refresh each year. Mrs.
Faulenbach noted this could be a safety issue.

e Mr. Schemm asked about line 51336 and Ms.
Baldelli said the line increased due to the nurse
para realignment.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 11

Mr. McCauley asked about line 55100 and Mrs.
Bilko said that was money to transport the
unified sports team.

4. Opportunity for the Public to be heard

Justin Mack, a New Milford resident and grade
4 teacher, felt the average class size is too big
for kindergarten. He suggested creating eight
sections to lower the class size to 17. He
suggested this would help lessen the need for
interventions later on.

Opportunity for the Public to be
heard

5. Recessed to Wednesday, January 18, 2017

Mr. Lawson recessed the meeting at 9:36 p.m. until
January 18, 2017.

Recessed to Wednesday, January
18,2017
The meeting recessed at 9:36 p.m.

Budget Hearing Minutes
January 18, 2017
Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Present:

Absent:

Mr. David A. Lawson, Chairperson
Mrs. Angela C. Chastain

Mr. Robert Coppola

Mr. Bill Dahl

Mrs. Wendy Faulenbach

Mr. Brian McCauley

Mrs. Tammy Mclnerney

Mr. J.T. Schemm

Mr. Dave Littlefield




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 12

Also Present: | Mr. Joshua Smith, Superintendent

Mr. Kevin Munrett, Facilities Manager

Ms. Roberta Pratt, Director of Technology

Ms. Alisha DiCorpo, Assistant Superintendent
Mr. Anthony Giovannone, Director of Fiscal Services and Operations
Ms. Ellamae Baldelli, Director of Human Resources

Mrs. Laura Olson, Director of Pupil Personnel and Special Services

Mrs. Anne Bilko, Principal, Sarah Noble Intermediate School
Dr. Christopher Longo, Principal, Schaghticoke Middle School
Mrs. Susan Murray, Principal, Northville Elementary School
Mr. Greg Shugrue, Principal, New Milford High School

Call to Order

1. Pledge of Allegiance

The budget hearing meeting of the New Milford Board
of Education was reconvened at 7:00 p.m. by Mr.
Lawson, Chairperson. The Pledge of Allegiance
immediately followed the call to order.

Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance

2. Discussion of the 2017-2018 School Budget
including, but not limited to, Middle School, High
School, and the Department of Instruction

e Mr. Smith handed out new enrollment data and
said New Milford does not have a transient
population.

e Mr. Coppola said the high school and middle
school seem to remain steady and Mr. Smith
said the lower numbers of students are going
through Sarah Noble right now.

e Mr. Smith handed out some new and corrected
numbers for supplies noting that the new
finance system required some manual
manipulation that led to a few errors none of
which had any major impact.

Schaghticoke Middle School

e Dr. Longo presented the highlights of
Schaghticoke's budget by starting with the
mission of the New Milford Public Schools.

e Dr. Longo explained the core values of
Schaghticoke as SURGE: Strive to always do
your best; Unite with others to stop intolerance

Discussion of the 2017-2018 School
Budget including, but not limited
to, Middle School, High School, and
the Department of Instruction

Schaghticoke Middle School




New Milford Board of Education Page 13
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

and bullying; Respect your school, others and
yourself; Grow into a person of character and
integrity; Encourage those who need help to :
succeed. &

e Highlights of the middle school programming
include NGSS implementation for Science;
Columbia Teachers College Unit of Study for
writing and reading; Connected Math program;
co-teaching implementation; SRBI process
refinement and finalization; creation of learning
labs; grade level department PLC meeting time;
and collaboration of staff with math, literacy
and data coaches.

e Dr. Longo said middle school is an important L
time to get involved in things other than £
academia and so there are multiple activities
available such as volleyball, school newspaper,
jazz, cross country, student council, etc. Some
of the highlights of the middle school
programming include clubs, activities,
interscholastic sports and intramural offerings;
music; geography bee; Lions Club poster
contest; CAS awards banquet; and unified
sports.

e This is year three of the middle school Project
Lead the Way program. Schaghticoke has added
conversational Spanish, which is a driver in this
budget, leading to the addition of a World
Language Teacher. Last year, some students
who chose Spanish did not have their request
filled.

e Dr. Longo then talked about lines in the budget
with changes. He said line 56500, general
education, is to move technology to the general
education line and this is for Chromebooks.
Line 56429 and 56460, ELA, is to build
classroom libraries which supports the sixth
grade reading and writing schedule change from
last year. This also includes intervention books
to differentiate reading levels. Line 56410,
Social Studies, is to purchase new textbooks to
replace the current book which is 26 years old.
Line 51115, Foreign Language, includes the 1.0
FTE increase for the World Languages teacher.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 14

e Mrs. Chastain asked what was covered in the
2.5 FTE grant and Mr. Giovannone said the 2.0
special education teachers and 0.5 of the social
worker.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked if there had been any
feedback about extending the World Language
offerings to grade six and Dr. Longo said he has
not had a lot of conversations about that but Mr.
Smith said it does often come up at parent
meetings. This is a direction that he would like
to move in, but it would add staffing and at
current budget levels, it was hard to justify.

e Mrs. Chastain asked how many Chromebooks
were being added and Dr. Longo said 55 total
which includes 6 for World Languages, 6 for
Reading, 18 Science and 23 for Social Studies.
Mrs. Chastain asked for the total number in the
school and Ms. Pratt said she would provide it.

e Mrs. Chastain asked if the classroom libraries
were going to be for grades 6-8 and Dr. Longo
said they would be, but they would look at the
needs first before they start building them. Ms.
DiCorpo said they looked at the existing library
of the teachers new to a grade level to begin
building their classroom libraries and they
would start with eighth grade first.

e Mrs. Chastain asked why the health certified
staff was increasing $22,000 and Ms. Baldelli
said there was 1.0 FTE, 0.5 and 2.0 certified for
PE and health.

e Mr. Schemm asked about line 56610 and Dr.
Longo said that was the instructional supplies
cut in the referendum. Mr. Smith said at the
June 22, 2016 meeting they cut $15,000 from
supplies district-wide and were required to give
the actual cuts to the Town on June 23, 2016 so
they made a quick cut from Schaghticoke and
the High School but the supplies were
reallocated later. These numbers in the budget
line, however, did not get changed and so this
was making the correction now. He noted this
happened to the high school budget as well.

e Mr. Schemm asked how many FTEs there were
in the World Language Arts program and Ms.




New Milford Board of Education Page 15
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Baldelli said currently there are 5.2 with an
additional 1.0 FTE proposed.

e Mrs. Mclnerney asked about the $61,000 in line
51115 ELA and Dr. Longo said that is the
largest department with 12 staff and also saw
staffing changes that impacted salary year to
year.

e Mrs. Chastain asked how many books were
going to be purchased in the Social Studies line
and Dr. Longo said that would be approximately
350. Mr. Smith noted that line also included the
licensing fee.

e Mr. Coppola asked if the pupil transportation -
other line was for after school programs and Dr.
Longo said this was for interscholastic sports
team travel.

e Mr. Lawson asked what the insurance line for
sports was for and Mr. Giovannone said it is
through Colonna Insurance and is available to
the students; the increased cost is direct from the
vendor.

e Mr. Dahl asked about the extracurricular clubs
and Dr. Longo said line 51180 is the salary line
for the clubs and noted there is a formula for the
type of club and the advisor.

e Mr. Coppola asked about the Youth Agency
after school program and the buses that can take
students home after school activities.

e Dr. Longo said the idea is to give the students as
much choice as possible including academic
fitness, math labs and non-academic clubs. The
Youth Agency is in the building now and their
information is given to the parents.

e Mrs. Mclnerney asked if the stipend for after
school activities was allocated per year or per
the number of sessions offered and Dr. Longo
said the stipend was for the culmination of the
activity.

e Mrs. Chastain asked how many students
participate in the after school activities and Dr.
Longo said more than half.

e Mr. Coppola asked if the special education
budget at Schaghticoke was different from Mrs.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 16

Olson's budget and Dr. Longo said this was
Schaghticoke's special education program.

Mrs. Faulenbach asked how many paras there
were and Dr. Longo said 25.

Mrs. McInerney asked about the line 51115 of
$85,791 and Dr. Longo said that was the teacher
of the deaf with a salary increase.

New Milford High School

Mr. Shugrue said this budget is a collaborative
effort of the team at the high school.

Mr. Shugrue introduced the high school budget
with its acronym WAVE: Work to become
lifelong learners; Achieve through hard work;
Value civic responsibility; Empower students
and teachers.

Mr. Shugrue spoke about the highlights of the
2016-17 budget including the ESS program with
17 students remaining at their home school;
PSATs for 10th and 11th grade administered
during the school year; subsidizing of AP
exams; curriculum writing; and texts in several
subjects.

This proposed budget includes the PSAT for
grade 9; Chromebooks for Social Studies,
English, and Special Education; new textbooks;
0.5 FTE for PE to address class sizes nearing
40; and weight room supervision.

Mr. Shugrue addressed different lines in the
proposed budget. Line 56100, General
Education, is the supply line similar to
Schaghticoke’s supply line. Lines in the ELA
budget include the license for 30 Chromebooks,
new titles per the new curriculum,
Chromebooks with charging cart, document
cameras, and memberships and subscriptions.
The World Language request includes a $21,500
decrease because enrollment in French 3 and
German 1 is lower than Spanish. Line 56410,
Math, is budgeted to purchase new Statistics
textbooks, Pre-Calculus textbooks, AP Calculus
books — all currently between 11 and 13 years
old. The Science increase includes textbooks for

New Milford High School




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26,2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 17

the new Environmental Science AP course and
new Integrated Science books that align with the
Next Generation Science Standards. Social
Studies increases include Chromebooks and less
expensive textbooks for a savings of $16,280
over this year’s budget. Savings in Business are
due to fewer classroom supplies and workbooks.
Music has decreased based on 2016-17 actuals.
The Athletics budget has some increases due to
increased rental costs and a decrease due to the
reduced need to paint the lines on the turf field.
Increase in line 51210 Guidance is to administer
the PSAT for 9th grade. The increase in the
Special Education lines is primarily due to
Chromebooks.

e Mr. Dahl asked if the weight room supervision
would be during or after school and if the
person would be certified and Mr. Shugrue said
after school and yes the person would be
certified.

e Mr. Coppola asked what the cost was and Mr.
Shugrue said $14,000. Mr. Coppola asked if this
would come from current staff or be a new hire
and Mr. Shugrue said he was confident it could
come from current staff.

e Mrs. Chastain asked about the 5.6 certified
teachers that were grant funded and Mr. Smith
said they were mostly special education and
funded through the IDEA grant.

e Mrs. Chastain asked what was comprised in the
professional services category and Mr.
Giovannone said Chromebook licenses,
contracted services, professional development
licenses, security for SRO’s, training and
certifications for coaches, and payment for
officials.

e Mrs. Chastain asked what Property Services
comprised and Mr. Giovannone said rental fees,
repairs, and painting and lining of fields.

e Mrs. Chastain asked if anything had been
established yet for future turf field replacement
and Mr. Smith said the Board cannot create the
account on this end though a surcharge has been
added for rentals of the field. Once the Town




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 18

establishes the account, the money will be
moved. Mrs. Faulenbach noted the Turf Fields
Committee had discussed this but the
Committee no longer exists.

e Mr. Coppola said he was excited to see money
for field trips but noted they were small
amounts. Mr. Shugrue said each department had
an amount so for line 55101 for English that
was to provide transportation for the Children’s
Literature class to go to Hill & Plain and read
their own children’s book to the students. He
said the Math department would have a budget
for the math team and the Music department had
money for the competitions they attend.

e Mrs. Chastain asked how many Chromebooks
were at the high school and what the average
life was and Ms. Pratt said there were 340 and
the average life was three years though they try
to get five.

e Mrs. Chastain asked how many were purchased
each year and Ms. Pratt said this is the first time
they are doing a refresh purchase and so they
hope to purchase 300.

e Mr. Schemm asked how much the licensing was
and if it recurred annually and Mrs. Pratt said it
was $30, now it is $25 and it lasts for three
years.

e Mrs. Faulenbach said last year the high school
was short on Art electives and Mr. Shugrue said
it is difficult to get enough electives to get to 26
credits total. He mentioned that the state has
pushed out their credit increase requirement to
2024. He said in New Milford the graduating
class of 2019 will be the first to have to get 26
credits to graduate. The issue with Art is there is
no space as there are only two Art rooms at the
high school.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked about the increase in the
health line 51115 and Mr. Giovannone said it
included 3.6 FTEs and step increases.

e Mr. Schemm asked what the Science dues were
for and Mr. Shugrue said it was Web Assign,
the Connecticut Science Fair, and Project Lead
the Way.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 19

Mrs. Chastain said the PE requirement in New
Milford is double the state requirement. Mr.
Shugrue said back when the mandate of
increasing the number of credits to graduate
hung over the heads of the district, the thought
was to increase the PE requirement to two — he
said at that time there would be an impact to the
budget. This was discussed at a Committee on
Learning meeting and the thought was one of
the easiest things to do was increase PE. At that
same meeting, the idea of a Capstone Project
was discussed as a way for a senior to earn a
credit. The Capstone Project was tabled but by
the end of that meeting the Committee voted to
raise the graduation requirement to 26 credits.
Mrs. Chastain noted hundreds of students
participate in sports both in school and out and
wondered if there was a way to capitalize on
that for a credit and Mr. Shugrue said it was his
understanding that this was not allowed. Ms.
DiCorpo said there is a discussion at the state
level of allowing that to happen but it is not
available to New Milford yet.

Mrs. Faulenbach asked about Alternative
Education 51115. Ms. Baldelli said this is
computer based instruction and has a 0.6 FTE
certified teacher.

Mr. Coppola asked if this was the alternative
high school and Mr. Smith said those services
show up in multiple lines. The plan is to
research and develop a more formal alternative
high school plan for review this coming spring
but it would not go into operation until the
2018-19 school year.

Mrs. Faulenbach asked if security appeared in
the professional services line and Mr.
Giovannone said it did.

Mr. Coppola asked about Guidance line 53200
which had an increase proposed and Mr.
Shugrue said that is to pay for the PSAT 9.

Mr. Schemm asked if that line included the AP
testing and Mr. Shugrue said it was everything -
AP tests, PSATs, etc.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 20

Mr. Schemm asked what the district did with the
data and Mr. Shugrue said they know that
students that take the PSATs score higher on the
SATs later on. He went on to discuss how the
data is used to help students know strengths and
weaknesses and to help predict AP courses in
which they would be successful. Ms. DiCorpo
went into additional detail on the work
happening at the classroom level and the use of
item analysis to drive instruction.

Mrs. Mclnerney noted that the Special
Education salary line was decreasing and Mr.
Giovannone said the district has been able to
replace a position at a lower rate.

The meeting recessed at 9:25 for a brief break and
reconvened at 9:32 pm.

Department of Instruction

Ms. DiCorpo started her presentation with the
mission of the New Milford Public Schools. She
then noted the budget priorities in this proposal
include professional development; access to
reliable technology; maintaining and improving
instructional opportunities; addressing the
social, emotional, and mental health needs of
students; funding college readiness
opportunities; and enhancing the
school/community partnerships.

Ms. DiCorpo highlighted some achievements of
the budget including curriculum development
and implementation; professional development;
assessment development; Columbia Teachers
Units of Study; Investigations K-5 and
Connected Math grades 6-8; data use; Adult
Education; and English language proficiency
standards.

Intervention and WIN successes and standards
were discussed with the intent that all students
are given the educational interventions they
need to succeed.

The overall budget request for the Department
of Instruction is a decrease of 1.82% or almost

Department of Instruction




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 21

$50,000. The drivers in the budget include
social/emotional learning, curriculum
development, and professional development.

e Ms. Pratt addressed the technology aspects of
instruction noting that technology allows the
staff to use many tools to educate the students.
She said she works with the Professional
Development Committee and the Curriculum
Council to understand their needs. The
technology budget proposals include expanded
Project Lead the Way labs, work with the K-5
Science enrichment program, work with the
Music department, work with media centers,
replacement of 120 computers, 300
Chromebooks, replacement of aged wireless
controllers, increased wireless capacity at
Schaghticoke, and replacement of aged district
router.

e Ms. DiCorpo noted line BDZ10000 for tutors
was an adjustment from previous years and not
a decrease. Line BDZ10002 had two coaches
move to correct locations.

e The ESL and bilingual education numbers have
remained relatively steady for the 2015-16 and
2016-17 years. The TAG/science
enrichment/PLTW budget includes a
replenishment of PLTW kits, John Hopkins
enrichment opportunities and universal TAG
testing for program identification.

e Instructional testing numbers include PSAT
testing for grade 9, NWEA K-8 licenses, Lexia,
and Aimsweb. Curriculum development
includes a five-year plan for 43 curriculum to be
aligned with new standards and AP course
training for two teachers through Taft.

e Professional development includes
administrator and Columbia Teachers College
training, increase in members by district which
will save on individual memberships, TEAM
training and Odysseyware.

e Public act 14-196 which is an act concerning a
statewide sexual abuse and assault awareness
program will require some Health curriculum
alignment. This is an unfunded mandate in the




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26,2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 22

social/emotional learning area. Homelessness is
on the rise: 5 students were homeless in 2015-
16 and 13 students are identified in 2016-17.
Adult Education has been reduced in this budget
proposal as no director could be found.

Mr. Lawson asked Mr. Giovannone if he had
information requested from the night before and
Mr. Giovannone said he had done an MOC
analysis and because the home pages were
manually entered there were a few minor errors
that did not materially affect the budget. He
handed out new pages.

3. Opportunity for the Public to be heard

There was no public comment made.

Opportunity for the Public to be
heard

4. Recessed to Tuesday, January 24, 2017*

Mr. Lawson recessed the meeting at 10:28 p.m. until
January 24, 2017.

Recessed to Tuesday, January 24,
2017
The meeting recessed at 10:28 p.m.

* Please note: The January 24, 2017 meeting was canceled due to weather and the snow
date of January 25, 2017 was used. The January 25, 2017 Budget Adoption meeting was
postponed to its snow date of January 26, 2017.

Budget Hearing Minutes
January 25, 2017
Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Present:

Mr. David A. Lawson, Chairperson

Mrs. Angela C. Chastain

Mr. Robert Coppola (arrived at 7:06 p.m.)
Mr. Bill Dahl

Mrs. Wendy Faulenbach

Mr. Dave Littlefield

Mr. Brian McCauley

Mrs. Tammy Mclnerney

Mr. J.T. Schemm




New Milford Board of Education Page 23
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26,2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Also Present: | Mr. Joshua Smith, Superintendent

Ms. Alisha DiCorpo, Assistant Superintendent

Mr. Anthony Giovannone, Director of Fiscal Services and Operations
Ms. Ellamae Baldelli, Director of Human Resources

Mr. Kevin Munrett, Facilities Manager

Mrs. Laura Olson, Director of Pupil Personnel and Special Services
Ms. Roberta Pratt, Director of Technology

Mrs. Anne Bilko, Principal, Sarah Noble Intermediate School

Mrs. Paula Kelleher, Principal, Hill and Plain Elementary School
Dr. Christopher Longo, Principal, Schaghticoke Middle School

Mr. Greg Shugrue, Principal, New Milford High School

Call to Order Call to Order

1. Pledge of Allegiance Pledge of Allegiance
The budget hearing meeting of the New Milford Board
of Education was reconvened at 7:00 p.m. by Mr.
Lawson, Chairperson. The Pledge of Allegiance
immediately followed the call to order.

e Mr. Lawson said they would begin the evening
with questions regarding the Department of
Instruction.

e Mrs. Chastain asked if the district was
identifying homeless students better or were
there more of them and Ms. DiCorpo said it was
a combination of both. Mrs. Chastain asked if
these students were referred to Social Services
and Ms. DiCorpo said they were.

e Mr. Schemm asked what grant was paying for |
the literacy coach and Ms. DiCorpo said the i
Title I grant at Title I schools. Mr. Schemm
asked which schools were Title [ and Ms.
DiCorpo said Sarah Noble, Hill & Plain, and
Schaghticoke. She noted that eligibility is based
on having at least 20% of the students in the
school eligible for free or reduced lunch.

Mr. Coppola arrived at 7:06 p.m.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked who was in the non-
certified staff line and Mr. Smith said the tutors
and substitutes. Mr. Giovannone said there is
also a technology person in that line.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 24

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked if Technology capital
was embedded in each department now and Ms.
Pratt said some is in the Capital account and
some is in Department of Instruction. Mrs.
Faulenbach asked what capital was in the
schools’ lines and Mr. Smith said furnishings
such as the tables at Northville. Mrs.
Faulenbach asked if there was a threshold dollar
amount for capital and Mr. Smith said there is
no hard and fast rule, but generally $5000 or
more has been treated as capital. Mrs.
Faulenbach said each building now has a capital
expenditure but no threshold for the dollar
amount.

e Mrs. McInerney asked if the Adult Education
facilitator was new and Mr. Smith said the
position was added two years ago, but the
program has not been treated as its own program
code. He said they have had trouble filling the
position so they left some dollars in the budget.
Mrs. Mclnerney asked if the director position
was still unfilled and Mr. Smith said it was still
unfilled and they are currently using the
facilitator for many of that position’s functions.

e Mr. Coppola asked how the tutors were paid and
Ms. DiCorpo said some were paid out of the
Title III grant. Mr. Coppola asked how much the
district received and where else the money was
being utilized. Ms. DiCorpo said the district
receives $181,901 for Title I. Mr. Giovannone
said Appendix E lists the grants but does not
split them by object code. Mr. Coppola asked
what Title III paid for and Ms. DiCorpo said it
helped pay for the tutors.

e Mr. Smith noted the Title I grant is a two-year
grant renewed annually. He said it is used for
supplemental materials, professional
development, and support services for low-
income children. The goal is to close the
achievement gap of students living in poverty
and those would are not.

e Mr. Coppola asked if these Title grants might be
reduced with the State budget issues and Mr.
Smith said these dollars are federal entitlement




New Milford Board of Education Page 25
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes ‘
January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017 \
Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

dollars and have increased over the years. The
money is based on the free and reduced lunch
participants. He said the high school is the one
school where fewer students apply for the free
or reduced lunch program. Mr. Smith said these
grants are often used to incentivize programs
and so they are not likely to be cut too much.

e Mr. Coppola asked how the Title I grants were
allocated and Ms. DiCorpo said they are
allocated per pupil.

e Mr. McCauley asked what the 9.23% increase in
professional services included and Mr.
Giovannone said there are eight individual line
items including curriculum writing, the
interpreter program, web based math courses,
and professional development among others.

e Ms. DiCorpo said there is an increase in 1
professional development of $10,000 for the r
ongoing Columbia University Teachers College
program and the TAG line increased $500 for
the John Hopkins online program.

e M. Littlefield asked what the code was for the
Chromebooks and Ms. Pratt said all the
buildings have Chromebooks. Mr. Smith said
the supply lines have things other than
Chromebooks as well. Mr. Smith said for
instance BLE10002 57340 includes $10,800 for
Chromebooks. Mr. Giovannone said line 53300
was for the licenses.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked about the salary non-
certified technical line and Ms. Pratt noted that
was a realignment to DOGA.

e Mr. Coppola said he was disappointed that the
field trip line is staying at $25,000 but he asked
if the money was being utilized and Ms.
DiCorpo said it will be utilized more in the
spring as she is aware there is a trip in the works
to go to the Warner Theatre.

e Mr. Coppola asked if the money would pay for
the full field trip or if it reduced the trip cost
proportionately and Ms. DiCorpo said it
depended on the cost of the trip. She said some
times the schools looked at their internal
budgets to help cover the costs.




New Milford Board of Education Page 26
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked if the intent for summer
school was to leave it as it was this summer and
Mr. Smith said last year they served 50 students
and the program went well and so they
anticipate only some minor changes.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked about the transportation
and Mr. Smith said this past summer the
extended school year special education program
ran in conjunction with the summer school and
this year there will be one week where they do
not piggyback.

e Mr. Coppola asked about the assistant
superintendent salary line 51111 and Mr. Smith
noted the district used to have two and when the
position was reduced to one they put part in
assessment and part in curriculum.

e Mr. Schemm asked how many students were
being served in ELL and TAG and Mr. Smith
said he would provide those numbers.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked about the increase in
Purchased Services and Ms. DiCorpo said that
is some of the data management programming
including Panaroma. Mr. Smith noted Panorama
is the program used for the school climate
survey and they have added a postgraduate
piece.

e Mr. Coppola asked about the Adult Education
position and Mr. Smith said the district needs to
have a conversation on the long-term status of
this position, maybe making it part of the
administrative bargaining unit. He said currently
it is a non-bargaining unit position and a likely
candidate for it would be a department chair but
this would not put them on a tenure track.

e Mr. Coppola asked who evaluates the Adult
Education staff and Ms. DiCorpo said she and
the facilitator are working on a model cleared
through EdAdvance.

e Mr. Coppola said the long-term goal should be
to hire a full-time director as this is an important
program especially for students who might not
be able to afford to go into post grad work due
to the cost.




New Milford Board of Education Page 27
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

2, Discussion of the 2017-2018 School Budget Discussion of the 2017-2018 School
including, but not limited to, Pupil Budget including, but not limited
Personnel/Special Education, Department of to, Pupil Personnel/Special
Maintenance, Technology, Department of General | Education, Department of
Administration, and Capital Maintenance, Technology,

Department of General
Administration, and Capital

Pupil Personnel/Special Education Pupil Personnel/Special Education

e Mrs. Olson said IDEA is the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act which has mandates
the schools must follow and this district does so
in a fiscally responsible way. She thanked the
administration and staff for their work to make
all this happen.

e Mrs. Olson presented the district priorities for
the Special Education services including:
increasing special education students time in
general education classes through co-teaching
and collaboration; increased implementation of
best practices in specialized instruction through
professional development; improved academic
performance in reading, writing and
mathematics; increased services for students
with significant mental health needs; and
improved student preparation for transition from
school to post-secondary settings.

e New Milford Special Education enrollment for
K-12 has increased in the 2016-17 year to 555
from 535 in 2015-16. New Milford’s percentage
of special education students has remained
pretty consistent while the state average
numbers have increased significantly.

e The pre-school special education increased from
35in2015-16 to 48 in 2016-17. This is why the
department is requesting a 0.5 FTE Excel
teacher. The Litchfield Hills Transition Center
is for 18+ year olds in need of transition
services that the district is mandated to provide.
The enrollment for 2016-17 is 18 New Milford
students and one tuition student and the
projection for 2017-18 is 19 New Milford
students and one tuition student. Keeping




New Milford Board of Education Page 28
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

students in district is a cost avoidance program
because it could cost up to $2 million to send
these students out of district but only $400,000
to keep them here and offer quality education.

e Mrs. Olson noted that numbers do not represent
the real needs as the students are becoming
more complex with more mental health issues
and early diagnoses of such things such as
anxiety, mood disorders, bipolar, and autism.
There is an increased legislative demand and
accountability and a significant increase in the
number of planning and placement team
meetings (PPTs). The number of PPTs from
July 1st to January 1st in 2016 was 399 and the
number for this school year through January
2017 is already 568 with the spring season
ahead where many more are usually done.

e Mrs. Chastain asked if a PPT could occur
without a student going into the special
education program and Mrs. Olson said a lot
are identified in this process because of the
complexity of behaviors. She said the PPT
process also looks at the function of that
behavior.

e Mrs. Chastain asked who is required to
participate in PPTs and Mrs. Olson said
typically the department chair, an administrator,
and a guidance counselor, among others.

e M. Littlefield asked if the bulk of PPTs were
parent initiated and Mrs. Olson said some are.

e Mrs. Olson described co-teaching as two or
more professionals, in this case a special
education and a general education teacher,
sharing instructional responsibility and
accountability for a single group of students for
whom they both have ownership. The benefits
include students with disabilities having access
to the general education curriculum and setting;
greater instructional intensity and differentiated
instruction; teachers learning from each other;
reduction of negative stigma associated with
“pull-out” programs; and students with
disabilities may feel more connected with their
peer group.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 29

e The co-teaching model includes “Train the
Trainer” embedded in the training and support
so that the other teachers can be trained as well.
In 2015-16, there were 23 sections at NMHS
and in 2016-17, there are 78 at Hill & Plain,
Northville, Sarah Noble, Schaghticoke, and
NMHS.

e Mr. Dahl asked when the teachers work together
to be trained and Mrs. Olson said the training is
in September. A consultant from SERC works
with each school differently and some schools
have this built into their planning time.

e Mrs. Olson said there are five million children
in the US that have some type of serious mental
illness that is defined as one that significantly
interferes with daily life. The most prevalent
illnesses are anxiety disorder, ADHD, and mood
disorders.

e New Milford’s mental health initiatives include
adding 2.0 FTE social workers since 2014-15
who are members of the regional crisis team; the
increase of a Board Certified Behavioral
Analyst (BCBA); a full-time substance abuse
counselor; and the therapeutic program at the
high school.

e Mrs. Olson discussed the Effective School
Solutions (ESS) program that was put in place
at the high school to help with the rising mental
health needs. This allows for quality in-district
education for all students and provides daily
group/individual therapy. The ESS program
provides a report card for the district and, as a
result, the disciplinary incidents have declined,
as have absences, while the student grade point
average has increased. This program allows the
clinical social workers or therapists to go into
the homes to help as well.

e Of'the 15 families in the program, all responded
to a satisfaction survey and were 100% satisfied
with the services. Mrs. Olson said the ESS
program has allowed New Milford to bring back
three students to the district, which is a cost
avoidance measure for the future.




New Milford Board of Education Page 30
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

e Mrs. Olson said the rationale to hire the full
time BCBA is due to the increasing mental
health needs, early intervention effectiveness,
completion of the functional behavior
assessments, and attendance at PPTs, among
other needs for the district.

e The Special Education Department Chair will
manage the most complex cases, help to
maintain the students in-district, provide parent
support, and chair PPTs. Currently there is 0.49
at Sarah Noble and Schaghticoke and a
Supervisor at the high school.

e Mr. Dahl asked if 0.49 was really enough time
and Mrs. Olson said she would love to have
more time, but this would be a start.

e Mr. Dahl noted young kids have a lot more
behavior problems and so maybe more
resources need to be put there. Mr. Smith said
Mrs. Olson would prefer more than 0.49 butina
year when four teachers are being reduced he
couldn’t justify adding an administrator.

e Mrs. Olson discussed the impacts to the 2017-
18 budget that include the additional 0.5 FTE
for the BCBA with the other 0.5 paid for
through the IDEA grant; the ESS program
which costs $275,000 annually; the K-2 Special
Education Department Chair; reduction in the
excess costs reimbursement; and reduction in
the private transportation costs.

e Mrs. Olson shared some of the 2016-17
accomplishments including the expanded
transition program; the therapeutic ESS
program; increase of time with non-disabled
peers through collaboration and co-teaching;
autism awareness; and unified sports at Sarah
Noble, Schaghticoke, and the high school.

e Mrs. Mclnerney thanked Mrs. Olson for her
presentation noting the special education
program here is stellar. She asked about the
BCBA therapist and the Department Chair
because she often hears from parents that they
are frustrated with not knowing what to do. She
asked if the BCBA normally works with the
students and Mrs. Olson said they work with the




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 31

teachers collecting data and look at behavior to
create a functional plan for a student.

e Mrs. Mclnerney thought it was great that the
social workers could go directly into the
households. She asked if there was a Special
Education Department Chair job description and
how much time that person would spend in the
classroom. She asked how this person would
differ from the inclusion specialist. Mrs. Olson
said this would be a K-2 department chair and
they do help with instruction in the classroom.
The role will include communicating with
families and parents and chairing complex
PPTs. They will not evaluate teachers but will
supervise department meetings.

e Mrs. Mclnerney asked if they will have an
overall impact in the classrooms and Mrs. Olson
said they would and would know what resources
to pull in, when to utilize the BCBA and outside
consultants, etc.

e Mr. Coppola asked if the PPTs included 504s
and Mrs. Olson said they did not. Ms. DiCorpo
said the 504s are not in the special education
budget but rather in general education and
include the schools’ social workers and
psychologists.

e Mr. Coppola asked what kind of support was
available for the 504s and Ms. DiCorpo said the
interventionist plays a role.

e Mr. Coppola asked about the excess cost
reimbursement and Mr. Smith said the ESS
program which was not in last year's budget
costs $275,000 but excess cost is not a one-for-
one reimbursement. He said it is a cost
avoidance program as the district can keep more
students here in district at a fraction of the cost,
approximately 1/5 to 1/10 of the total.

e Mr. Coppola said, regarding the BCBA position,
that this is the first time the district has this kind
of support. Mrs. Olson said it will be a certified
staff member, full time, that the district will
hire.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 32

e Mrs. Chastain asked if the ESS program was in
the lower grades as well and Mrs. Olson said it
was only at the high school for the first year.

e Mrs. Faulenbach noted the data was from 2015
and asked if there was any more current data
and Mrs. Olson said the data is usually two
years behind, but New Milford hovers around
13.4%. She said there is a bubble in pre-school
and the 18-21 year olds.

e Mr. Schemm asked how many PPTs the
proposed Special Education Chair would pick
up and Mrs. Olson said she would get that
information.

e Mr. Coppola asked if there was a new definition
for learning disabled and Mrs. Olson said no but
there is a new category for dyslexia.

e Mrs. Mclnerney asked if the disability count
was unique numbers and Mrs. Olson said by
state guidelines there can only be one
classification per student.

e Mrs. Mclnerney asked if there were six social
workers in addition to what was in the special
education budget and Mrs. Olson said they were
all in her budget - 0.5 at Hill & Plain and
Northville, 1.0 at Sarah Noble, and 2.0 at
Schaghticoke and NMHS each.

e Mrs. Chastain asked what the increase in the
supply line included and Mrs. Olson said she is
budgeting for 12 sets of EpiPen’s at $650 each,
which were donated in the past, and for
replacement pads for the AED defibrillators.

e M. Littlefield asked if the EpiPen’s expire and
Mrs. Olson said they usually expire within one
year.

e Mrs. Chastain asked if the EpiPen’s were
mandated and wondered if the insurance would
cover that for a student and Mrs. Olson said
some parents do bring them in, but the district
needs to be prepared if there is an issue.

e Mrs. Chastain asked if a prescription was
needed and Mrs. Olson said individual students
need a prescription, but the schools need to have
these on hand for emergencies. Mr. Smith said




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

they have administered the EpiPen to a student
who was not aware of an allergy.

e Mr. Coppola asked what else was in line 56100
and Mrs. Olson said new testing materials and
protocols for the speech line because if they are
not updated every five years the testing can be
declared null and void.

e Mr. Coppola asked how much the district
receives for the IDEA grant and if they have
different functions. Mrs. Olson said the K-12
grant is $850,048 and the pre-school is $33,091.
She said the amounts have been going down
over the years.

e Mrs. Mclnerney asked for a scenario for non-
public school funding and Mrs. Olson said the
district has an equitable share agreement with
Faith Academy to provide a 0.2 teacher, for
instance, and special education services at
Canterbury School.

e Mr. Coppola asked what is paid for out of the
IDEA grant and Mrs. Olson said $640,316 goes
for teachers.

e Mr. Coppola asked if there was a sunset on the
IDEA grant and Mrs. Olson said it is a two-year
grant that must be reapplied for every year.

e Mr. McCauley asked about the increase in the
certified salary line and Mrs. Olson said that is
the teacher for the hearing impaired student
moving to Schaghticoke. Mr. Smith said it is
also the 0.51 Excel teacher added for next year.

e Mr. Coppola asked if the money for special
education programming went to the Town or the
Board and Mr. Olson said it comes to the Board.

e Mrs. Mclnerney asked why line 51112 salary
certified special education increased by 168%
and Mrs. Olson said there are staffing changes
such as the special education supervisor that
have been reallocated to that line.

e Mrs. Mclnerney asked about line 55800 travel
and Mrs. Olson said that is for visiting job sites
and monitoring the students at work.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked if the furniture and
fixtures were not in capital and Mr. Smith said
that was correct.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 34

The meeting recessed at 9:02 p.m. and
reconvened at 9:09 p.m.

Department of Maintenance

Mr. Munrett said the Facilities department
includes 30.5 custodians, 4.5 groundsworkers,
and 11 maintainers. They clean over 787,000
square feet every night, maintain over 187 acres
of property, complete over 1,500 work orders
annually, and paint thousands of square feet
annually. They also are the project management
team for capital items.

The Facilities management budget includes
salary increases of 0.07% and 0.36% and a
realignment of operating funds on a per building
basis. Also in this budget are cleaning supplies,
maintenance supplies, grounds supplies,
equipment replacement, contracted services,
security, roof repairs, paint, and capital projects.
The custodial operating expense increase is
2.16% while maintenance is 0.83%.

Mrs. Mclnemney asked if the custodial salaries
were still in the Facilities budget and Mr.
Munrett said they were. He noted the
maintenance salaries are still not allocated.

Mrs. Faulenbach asked if the Facilities Manager
was a non-certified salary and Mr. Giovannone
said all the salaries in the custodial staffing
budget were non-certified. Mrs. Faulenbach
asked if this was where the non-bargaining unit
employees were and Mr. Giovannone said there
were two and one was in this custodial area split
into custodian and maintenance.

Mrs. Faulenbach asked if the non-bargaining
unit employees were in DOGA and Mr. Smith
said most of them were in DOGA.

Mrs. Chastain asked about the dollar change in
non-certified salary in the maintenance
operating budget and Mr. Smith said the budget
includes some anticipated amounts for salaries.
Mrs. Faulenbach noted in the past the non-
bargaining salaries would be determined in

Department of Maintenance




New Milford Board of Education Page 35
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

June. Mr. Smith said the non-bargaining units
were not tied to any line but rather "Lillis" ,,
general. In this budget, they are trying to be 5
more transparent.

e Mrs. Chastain asked if there was a list of these
employees and Mr. Smith said last year this was
done in Executive Session. Mrs. Faulenbach
asked if these will come back to the Board for
final approval and Mr. Smith said they would.

e Mr. Schemm appreciated the electric cost being
broken down by schools and asked if there was
going to be any cost avoidance programs for
electric use. Mr. Munrett said he spoke to
Connecticut Power to reapply for a program for
more cost avoidance opportunities.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked if this would have an
effect on this budget cycle and Mr. Munrett said
there could be a revenue stream involved.

e Mr. Coppola asked if the Board still works with
the town on o0il and Mr. Smith said they have
already locked in fuel oil, propane and diesel for
next yeatr.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked if the fuel oil decreased
and Mr. Smith said the decrease came in this
past year’s budget due to the decrease in
buildings.

e Mrs. Chastain asked about line 56290 supplies
for the high school and Mr. Giovannone said
that was a reallocation of overtime into supplies
and repairs and a decrease in the custodial salary
line. Mrs. Chastain asked if there was a
reduction in overtime or just a reallocation and
Mr. Giovannone said the true cut to the Town is
$15,000 after the realignment.

e Mr. Lawson asked if the Board would allow the
member of the public who was here to speak to
address the Board now. The Board members
agreed.

Public Participation Public Participation

e David Gronbach, Mayor of the Town of New
Milford, was present to suggest to the Board




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 36

that with a potential unprecedented loss of
funding from the state, the Board could benefit
from the sale of East Street School and fund
their capital for some time to come. He said they
could take a disbursement from their capital to
fix John Pettibone to the way they want the
administrative offices to look like and not spend
$8 million to fix up East Street. He noted the
teachers have won a grievance which will cost
the Board $375,000 and if the town sold East
Street and the Board moved to Pettibone, they
could use these funds to offset the teachers’
grievance.

Technology

Ms. Pratt thanked the Board for the support they
have put towards technology. The Technology
staff includes nine employees. There are 1,420
computers for 5,100 users; 1,723 Chromebooks;
and five virtualized servers.

The Technology department supports six
buildings, curriculum software, 4,300 students
and 600 staff, and security systems. The focus is
on classroom device support, training, and
device repairs.

The foundation of technology is the
infrastructure. Technology is aligned to the
district priorities through devices and supplies,
technology staff training, student information
systems, and digital resources.

Mrs. Faulenbach noted capital has been
embedded throughout and Ms. Pratt said in
Department of Instruction, DOGA, and Capital.
Mrs. Faulenbach asked for a number outside
Capital and Mr. Smith said technology gets
mixed in the supply lines. Mrs. Faulenbach
asked to receive the number that could be
determined easiest.

Department of General Administration/Capital

Mr. Lawson said capital has been put in the
budget knowing it is operational. Mr. Smith said

Technology

Department of General
Administration
Capital




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 37

last year $430,000 was moved to revenue to
match capital so that it was done in a budget
neutral way.

e Mrs. Faulenbach said the capital was matched
with revenue. Mr. Smith said it was previously
split between Facilities and Technology but
putting it in the budget this way will remove the
feast or famine that has happened in the past.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked what the balance of the
capital reserve was currently and Mr. Smith said
the balance was between $1 million and $1.2
million.

e Mr. Giovannone said the chiller came out of
capital reserve and as of October 18, 2016, the
balance was $1,318,918. The withdrawal for the
2016-17 budget for capital was $430,071. They
are budgeting a placeholder for the 2015-16
fund balance of about $348,000.

e Mrs. Chastain asked how many Smart Boards
would be included in the refresh number and
Mrs. Pratt said 17.

e Mrs. Chastain asked how many Chromebooks
would be needed at Schaghticoke after the 60 in
this budget and Ms. Pratt said most teachers are
now using the Chromebooks.

e Mr. Lawson noted the Chromebooks are
textbooks and notebooks and the carts go out to
different places.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked if the prices have gone
up or down and Ms. Pratt said it depends on the
brand — our district uses Dell.

e Mrs. Faulenbach noted the district did computer
lab updates last year and asked what was
included in that and Mrs. Pratt said 25
computers, which are different from
Chromebooks.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked about the age of the
Chromebook refresh and Ms. Pratt said it
ideally should be every three years but the
district tries to get five.

e Mrs. Chastain asked about the Project Lead the
Way grant and Mr. Smith said, in the
conversation with the donor, he did not want the
grant to supplant the budget but rather to




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 38

purchase things that the district could not afford
such as 3-D printers, etchers, etc.

Mr. Schemm asked if the computers in the
PLTW lab would be redeployed and Ms. Pratt
said they would be.

3. Opportunity for the Public to be heard

The Board had moved public participation to
earlier in the meeting.

Opportunity for the Public to be
heard

4. Discussion of Non-Bargaining Unit employment and
salary (executive session anticipated)

Mr. Lawson said after consultation with the
Superintendent and Board Counsel the proposed
Executive Session to discuss non-bargaining
unit employment and salaries will be postponed
to a later date.

He said the budget discussion tomorrow will
continue with DOGA and Capital questions and
then budget adoption.

Mrs. Faulenbach asked if there had been any
discussion with the Town about offsets to this
budget and Mr. Lawson said he had no
indication of that.

Discussion of Non-Bargaining Unit
employment and salary (executive
session anticipated)

S. Recessed to Thursday, January 26, 2017

Mr. Lawson recessed the meeting at 10:08 p.m. until
January 26, 2017.

Recessed to Thursday, January 26,
2017
The meeting recessed at 10:08 p.m.




,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

New Milford Board of Education Page 39
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Budget Hearing Minutes
January 26, 2017
Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Present: Mr. David A. Lawson, Chairperson
Mrs. Angela C. Chastain

Mr. Robert Coppola

Mr. Bill Dahl

Mrs. Wendy Faulenbach

Mr. Dave Littlefield

Mr. Brian McCauley

Mrs. Tammy Mclnerney

Mr. J.T. Schemm

Also Present: Mr. Joshua Smith, Superintendent of Schools

Ms. Alisha DiCorpo, Assistant Superintendent of Schools

Ms. Ellamae Baldelli, Director of Human Resources

Mr. Anthony Giovannone, Director of Fiscal Services and Operations
Ms. Roberta Pratt, Director of Technology

Mrs. Laura Olson, Director of Pupil Personnel and Special Services
Mr. Kevin Munrett, Facilities Manager

Mr. Greg Shugrue, New Milford High School Principal

Dr. Christopher Longo, Schaghticoke Middle School Principal
Mrs. Anne Bilko, Sarah Noble Intermediate School Principal

Mrs. Paula Kelleher, Hill & Plain Elementary School Principal
Mrs. Susan Murray, Northville Elementary School Principal

1. Call to Order Call to Order

A. | Pledge of Allegiance A. Pledge of Allegiance
The budget hearing meeting of the New Milford Board
of Education was reconvened at 7:00 p.m. by Mr.
Lawson, Chairperson. The Pledge of Allegiance
immediately followed the call to order.

2. Public Comment Public Comment

o There was none.

3. Discussion and Possible Action Discussion and Possible Action

A. | Request for Additional Teacher A. Request for Additional Teacher




New Milford Board of Education Page 40
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Mr. Coppola moved to approve a 0.5 Special Motion made and passed

Education teacher for the EXCEL program at unanimously to approve a 0.5

Northville Elementary School, seconded by Mrs. Special Education teacher for the

Faulenbach. EXCEL program at Northville
Elementary School.

e Mr. Smith said the mandated program for three-
year-olds saw an increase of three students in
December and two more since then. Because it
is a typical peer program, this is a total of ten
students who they cannot fit into existing
sections.

e Mr. Littlefield asked if there is an expected
student/teacher ratio mandated. Mrs. Olson said
there was no specific mandate but there is a
requirement for a Special Education teacher and
support staff.

e Mr. Littlefield asked what is typical now. Mrs.
Olson said it is a 12/3 ratio with one teacher and
two support staff. She said some children also
require 1/1 service.

The motion passed unanimously.

B. | Exhibit A: Personnel — Certified, Non-Certified, B. Exhibit A: Personnel — Certified,
Appointments, Resignations and Leaves of Absence Non-Certified, Appointments,

dated January 25, 2017 Resignations and Leaves of
Absence dated January 25, 2017

Mr. McCauley moved to approve Exhibit A: Motion made and passed
Personnel — Certified, Non-Certified Appointments, unanimously to approve Exhibit A:
Resignations and Leaves of Absence as of January Personne] — Certified, Non-
25, 2017, seconded by Mr. Coppola. Certified Appointments,
Resignations and Leaves of Absence
e Mr. Schemm asked for confirmation that this as of January 25, 2017.
Exhibit was coming directly to the Board
instead of to the Operations Sub-Committee
first, as is practice, because there is no
Operations meeting in January. Mr. Smith said
that is correct.

The motion passed unanimously.

C. | Monthly Reports C. Monthly Rep(?r.ts
1. Budget Position dated 12/30/16 1. Budget Position dated
2. Purchase Resolution: D-694 12/30/16




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26,2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

3. Request for Budget Transfers

Mr. Lawson moved to approve monthly reports -
Budget Position dated 12/30/16, Purchase
Resolution: D-694, and Request for Budget
Transfers, seconded by Mr. McCauley.

e Mr. Coppola asked for clarification on the
CREC and SERC items on the purchase
resolution. Mr. Smith said these come out of the
Title IT grant. The Math is for the Investigations
program at the middle school; grade 8 is in its
first year so this is to bring a math consultant in
to help teachers with its adoption. Regarding the
English piece, there was an unfilled Language
Arts coach position at the middle school so an
outside consultant was used. The position has
now been filled.

e Mr. Coppola asked what SERC stood for and
how it was different from CREC and Mr. Smith
said it was State Education Resource Center and
serviced the entire state versus CREC which is
regional.

The motion passed unanimously.

D. | Gifts & Donations
1. Goldring Family Foundation-Exhibit B

Mrs. Chastain moved to accept Gifts & Donations:
Goldring Family Foundation-Exhibit B in the
amount of $48,818.90 seconded by Mr. Littlefield.

e Mr. Coppola asked if the PLTW supplies and
equipment were additions or replenishments.
Mr. Smith said they are supplemental only and
do not supplant the budget.

e Mr. Coppola asked if they were for the high
school. Mr. Smith said the high school was fully
equipped at the moment, so these items are for
the middle school and K-5 programs.

2. Purchase Resolution: D-694
3. Request for Budget Transfers

Motion made and passed
unanimously to approve monthly
reports - Budget Position dated
12/30/16, Purchase Resolution: D-
694, and Request for Budget
Transfers.

D. Gifts & Donations
1. Goldring Family Foundation-
Exhibit B

Motion made and passed
unanimously to accept Gifts &
Donations: Goldring Family
Foundation-Exhibit B in the
amount of $48,818.90.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 42

e Mr. Coppola, on behalf of the Board, thanked
the Goldring Family Foundation for their
generosity.

The motion passed unanimously.

E. | Adoption of the 2017-2018 Board of Education
Budget

e Mr. Lawson said there was some unfinished
business from last night to conclude before the
Board moved into discussion of Budget
adoption.

e Mr. Giovannone distributed a handout that
addressed questions asked last night.

e Mr. Coppola had asked for a breakout of
salaries versus non-salaries of entitlement grants
not funded through the budget. Mr. Giovannone
included a chart with that detail on page 4 of the
handout.

e Mrs. Mclnerney and Mrs. Faulenbach had asked
about the summer school program and how
many expected students are projected for 2017-
18. The total in 2016-17 was 50 students; we are
projecting 45-60 students in 2017-18.

e Mr. Schemm had asked how many students
were serviced in the ELL and TAG programs.
Mr. Giovannone reported 142 students in the
ELL program and 112 students in TAG grades
2-11.

e Mrs. Faulenbach had requested a breakout of
individual items making up the $70,000 request
for Professional Services within the Department
of Instruction. Mr. Giovannone included a chart
on page 2 of the handout: K-8 curriculum
licensing is $46,000; district assessment is
$10,000; professional development and training
are $7,500; and student/community outreach are
$6,500.

e Mr. Schemm had requested information on the
number of PPT’s per school and Mr. Smith said
they are still working to compile that
information.

E. Adoption of the 2017-2018
Board of Education Budget




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

e Mrs. Faulenbach had requested an updated
statement on the current balance within the
capital reserve account. Mr. Giovannone’s
handout reported a total of $1,153,253.

e Mr. Littlefield and Mrs. Faulenbach had asked
for a breakout of technology associated budget
lines both in the Department of Instruction and
in the schools’ budgets. Mr. Smith said the chart
on page 3 summarized items over $250. Lower
priced software, for example, were not included.

e Mrs. Chastain and Mrs. Faulenbach had asked
about approval of the non-bargaining salaries
and how they are presented in the current budget
book. Mr. Smith said that information is given
on page 5.

e Mr. Lawson asked for additional questions on
DOGA and Capital.

e Mrs. McInerney asked for clarification
regarding object 53200 on page 80 that shows a
272% increase. Mr. Smith said the $20,000 is
for strategic planning.

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked if the health insurance
line 52810 on that page was just the amount
from the actuaries. Mr. Giovannone said it
includes an employee assistance program and
Humana vision plan too. Actuarial projections
are for a 9% increase.

e Mrs. Faulenbach said in the past there is often
movement in this number in the April/May
timeframe. Mr. Smith said as of July 1, 100% of
staff will be on a high deductible health plan so
he is hopeful we will see an adjustment in May,
but it is only wishful thinking until we hear
from our actuaries. Mr. Smith said the BOE
makes up 2/3 of the total participants in the plan
and has been very aggressive regarding cost
share and high deductible plans. The Town has
been less successful.

e Mrs. Faulenbach said she feels any offset or
reduction, which may be given to reduce
insurance costs, should be proportionate to the
amount of participants in the plan.

e Mr. Schemm said he wanted it noted that of the
requested 3.7% increase, 1.1% is in this line. He




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 44

said this area has big ramifications as a budget
driver and the Board is always actively trying to
negotiate savings here.

e Mr. Smith said medical and benefit increases are
almost 2% of the requested 3.7% increase.

e Mrs. Faulenbach said the relief given last year is
creating a big hole this year. The 8-10%
increase that all districts are seeing just
compounds that.

e Mr. Coppola asked if there is any discussion
from the Town on using the Internal Service
Fund (ISF) for relief this year and Mr. Lawson
said he had not had any communication from
the Town on this topic.

e Mr. Smith said the audit had been delayed by
thirty days this year, so the amount of available
funds in the ISF is not yet known.

e Mrs. Faulenbach questioned the $19,000
increase in legal services since there was only
one negotiation this year. Mr. Smith said they
had done a comparison of actuals from year to
year for the different contracts and this is
typically needed.

e Mr. Coppola said he thought the Board had
agreed to review legal representation and go out
to bid. Mr. Smith said this came up last year and
the Board agreed not to take action.

e Mrs. Chastain asked about the $44,000 increase
in object 53500 on page 82. Ms. Pratt said it is
for increases in licensing fees. Mr. Smith noted
there were some offsets in other lines.

e Mrs. Chastain asked for clarification on the
security items on page 83 and Mr. Smith said
this was for security hardware.

e Mrs. Chastain asked about the vehicle
replacement item. Mr. Munrett said this was
part of a rotation to phase out older vehicles and
would purchase a Ford 350 pickup. Mrs.
Chastain asked what it would replace and Mr.
Munrett said the van used by the HVAC person.
Mrs. Chastain asked if a truck replacement was
appropriate and Mr. Munrett said it would also
be used for snow removal.




New Milford Board of Education Page 45 |
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

e Mr. Coppola asked if the Board was going to
take action on the turf fields going forward. Mr.
Lawson said it had been agreed upon to add this
to future discussions at Facilities and Operations
Sub-Committee meetings.

e Mrs. Faulenbach said she wanted a procedural
clarification regarding revenue offset in the
capital line. She said it was her understanding
that approval of this use by the Town is now
automatic once the budget passes and asked, if
that is so, is it line item driven. Mr. Smith said
this had been discussed internally with the
auditors and it should be of “similar intent”. If
the Board wishes to repurpose the funds, then
they would need to do a transfer memo in public
to show this. Mrs. Faulenbach said she was
happy to see there is flexibility.

e Mr. Coppola asked for clarification of the loss
in revenue in excess cost in relation to the ESS
program. Mrs. Olson said excess cost is
projected down because more students are
remaining in district and because some high
need students aged out of the program.

e Mr. Coppola asked about savings to the district
overall. Mr. Smith said it could be over
$1,000,000 depending on factors included. He
said the excess cost number is counterintuitive.
It is lower as the district does not qualify for as
much reimbursement, but that is because other
costs have been greatly reduced. The fact that
this number is down means the district is doing
a good job on cost avoidance.

e Mrs. Faulenbach said she would like the budget
to reflect revenues to the Town as it has in
previous years. It is helpful when presenting at
Town Council to remind them of what the Town
gets.

e M. Littlefield asked what the parking permit
fee was at the high school and Mr. Shugrue said
it is $150.

e Mr. Lawson asked if there were any additional
questions on the budget before moving on to the
motion.




New Milford Board of Education Page 46
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

e Mr. Schemm asked for clarification of the PSAT
cost on page 36. Mr. Smith said of the $41,000
total, $5,800 was for the 8/9 PSAT.

e Mr. Coppola said the presentations were very
well done and answered many questions before
they could even be asked. He said he
appreciated the quick response to any questions
he did have. He thanked the staff for all their
efforts.

e Mr. McCauley said he found the budget very
easy to understand this year.

e Mr. Lawson said he commended all on the
diligent attention given to the budget. He said
by his count there were over 200 questions on
84 pages.

e Mr. Dahl said he wanted to make a statement
about the overall budget. He said when he first
saw the proposal with the requested 3.7%
increase, his first thought was that there was no
way that it would pass. Then he thought about
the turf field project where people said that the
Town should support it because the kids
deserved the best field to play on to compete
with other students in other towns and that it
would be a great boon for the community to
attract families. They said we needed to meet
the needs of the kids. Mr. Dahl said the same
rationale can be used here. This budget secks to
meet the needs of the students in our
community. He said he believes it is another
step in the right direction. Test scores are up, we
have more AP classes, and increased
interventions where needed. This is what we
need and we should send it to the Town Council
and taxpayers to cut if they don’t agree.

e Mr. Lawson said he thinks Mr. Dahl echoes the
sentiments of all present.

e Mrs. Faulenbach said she agrees that she would
rather have conversations about what should be
added, but her concern is with all the years that
budgets are cut and go down at the polls. With
the turf fields, taxpayer dollars were not directly
affected; that is not the case here. With that said,
Mrs. Faulenbach said she will support this




New Milford Board of Education
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes
January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

budget and hopes that the Board will really
market it, stick together, and defend it.

e Mr. Coppola agreed that they need to be
proactive in support.

e Mr. Schemm said he appreciated the thoughtful
conversations about education that took place as
they deliberated over the last four nights.

e Mrs. Mclnerney said she was proud of the work
to keep our students competitive and attract
people to Town. She thanked all for their work
on the budget.

e Mr. Lawson said he concurred. He appreciated
the diligence shown on every page, the
willingness to see other points of view and
called it remarkable work.

Mr. Coppola moved to approve the
Superintendent’s proposed 2017-2018 budget in
the amount of $63,970,118, seconded by Mr. Dahl.

e Mr. Lawson noted that from this point
amendment motions could be made to increase
or decrease the budget.

Mr. McCauley moved to amend the
Superintendent’s proposed 2017-2018 budget by
increasing it by $130,000 for the purpose of hiring
two Kindergarten teachers, one for Hill and Plain
Elementary School and one for Northville
Elementary School, seconded by Mr. Coppola.

e Mr. McCauley said he was really concerned
with the projected ratio of 19.4 at NES and 20.1
at HPS for Kindergarten classes. He said he had
done research and studies show the optimal ratio
is 18:1. Other longitudinal studies show that a
lower ratio creates higher achievement rates,
less behavior problems, and higher college
attendance. He said kindergarten is the first step
in student progress where teachers catch
problems. With larger numbers, that is harder to
do.

e Mr. Coppola said he would support this as he
too is concerned with the importance of a good

Motion made to approve the
Superintendent’s proposed
2017-2018 budget in the amount
of 63,970,118.

Motion made and passed to amend
the Superintendent’s proposed
2017-2018 budget by increasing it
by $130,000 for the purpose of
hiring two Kindergarten teachers,
one for Hill and Plain Elementary
School and one for Northville
Elementary School.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 48

start. He is also concerned with late registrations
that may occur in September.

e Mrs. Mclnerney said she agrees and has seen
the benefits first hand of instructing smaller
groups, especially considering the diverse
educational backgrounds of students entering
Kindergarten. She is also concerned about the
risk of hitting the 22-1 student/teacher cap and
what would have to take place if that happens.

e Mr. Lawson said he concurred. Primary grades
are the foundation of education. He also worries
about addressing the social/emotional issues of
the students and differentiation.

e Mrs. Chastain said in a perfect world this would
be a wonderful addition but everything comes
with a price. The budget already adds 2 V2
support persons to this level and the budget is
high. She reviewed class sizes in towns around
us and ours are lower than most.

e Mrs. Faulenbach said this budget already has a
$1,000,000 increase that is out of the Board’s
control. She is not looking to add anything else
without offsets. Other DRG numbers are
comparable. She doesn’t think we can afford the
addition at this time but is open to revisiting it
should things change.

e Mr. Littlefield said he contemplated this
addition too but thinks the likelihood of passing
the budget as it sits at 3.7% is very unlikely. He
thinks cuts are already needed.

The motion passed 6-3.

Aye: Mr. Coppola, Mr. Dahl, , Mr. Lawson,
Mr. McCauley, Mrs. McInerney, Mr. Schemm

No: Mrs. Chastain, Mrs. Faulenbach,
Mr. Littlefield

Mrs. Faulenbach moved to amend the
Superintendent’s proposed 2017-2018 budget by
decreasing $107,700 from the Capital account,
seconded by Mrs. Chastain.

Motion made and passed to amend
the Superintendent’s proposed
2017-2018 budget by decreasing
$107,700 from the Capital account.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 49

Mrs. Faulenbach said she appreciated the
importance of having capital in the budget but
this budget is addressing areas developed over
time including the insurance hole. This decrease
would help reduce the budget but still leave
capital in the budget if not all line items.

The motion passed 5-3-1.

Aye: Mrs. Chastain, Mr. Coppola,
Mrs. Faulenbach, Mr. Littlefield, Mr. McCauley

No: Mr. Lawson, Mrs. McInerney, Mr. Schemm
Abstain: Mr. Dahl

Mrs. Chastain moved to amend the
Superintendent’s proposed 2017-2018 budget by
decreasing $150,000 from supply lines across the
board, seconded by Mrs. Faulenbach.

Mrs. Chastain said the numbers were a little
higher than in the past and not as equitable. She
thinks the budget is too high to pass and this
would not have a huge impact on students. She
thinks we can get by closer to this year’s rates.
Mr. Coppola asked if one line would take a big
hit under this proposal and Mrs. Chastain said
SMS would lose $50,000. Mr. Coppola asked if
Mrs. Chastain would consider less to alleviate
the hit to SMS. Mrs. Chastain said she would
consider changing the amount to $125,000
reducing the SMS cut to $25,000.

Motion and second were withdrawn.

Mrs. Chastain moved to amend the
Superintendent’s proposed 2017-2018 budget by
decreasing $125,000 from supply lines across the
board, seconded by Mr. Coppola.

Mr. Schemm asked if allocation rates were by
school and enrollment and Mr. Smith said there
was a formula.

Motion made to amend the
Superintendent’s proposed 2017-
2018 budget by decreasing $150,000
from supply lines across the board.

Motion and second withdrawn.

Motion made and passed to amend
the Superintendent’s proposed
2017-2018 budget by decreasing
$125,000 from supply lines across
the board.




New Milford Board of Education

Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26, 2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 50

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked if it was fair to say there
could be movement in line items and Mr.
Lawson said adjustments could be made later.

The motion passed 6-2-1.

Aye: Mrs. Chastain, Mr. Coppola,
Mrs. Faulenbach, Mr. Littlefield,
Mrs. McInerney, Mr. Schemm

No: Mr. Lawson, Mr. McCauley

Abstain: Mr. Dahl

e Mrs. Faulenbach asked if there were
placeholders for salary that could be revisited.
Mr. Smith said they did not budget contingency
positions but there have been a few retirements
in the last month or so.

Mrs. Faulenbach moved to amend the
Superintendent’s proposed 2017-2018 budget by
decreasing $50,000 from the salary control line,
seconded by Mr. Coppola.

e Mrs. Faulenbach said she was not identifying
any particular position here but basing the
savings on possible new hires.

e Mr. Lawson said administrators had given much
thought and time to these numbers and he was
not a big risk taker with personnel. As such he
wants to stay with the number presented.

e Mr. Schemm said he is also risk adverse and
with the advent of Munis this number is much
tighter tracked than previously. He also said that
if we want to continue to move forward as a
district and attract, recruit and retain the best
candidates then this number will not go down.

e Mrs. Faulenbach said she appreciated that but
was trying to look for savings and historically
there have been savings available in this line.

e Mr. Smith said he would prefer to take risk here
to protect programs.

Motion made and passed to amend
the Superintendent’s proposed
2017-2018 budget by decreasing
$50,000 from the salary control line.




New Milford Board of Education Page 51
Budget Hearing & Meeting Minutes

January 17, 18, 25 & 26,2017

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

The motion passed 5-4.

Aye: Mrs. Chastain, Mr. Coppola, Mr. Dahl,
Mrs. Faulenbach, Mr. Littlefield

No: Mr. Lawson, Mr. McCauley, Mrs. McInerney, ’

Mr. Schemm ‘
Mr. McCauley moved to approve the Motion made and passed |
Superintendent’s proposed 2017-2018 budget as unanimously to approve the

amended in the amount of $63,817,418, seconded by | Superintendent’s proposed

Mr. Coppola. 2017-2018 budget as amended

in the amount of $63,817,418.
The motion passed unanimously.

4. Adjourn Adjourn
Mr. Coppola moved to adjourn the meeting at Motion made and passed
8:40 p.m., seconded by Mr. Dahl and passed unanimously to adjourn the
unanimously. meeting at 8:40 p.m.
Respectfully submitted:

-

Tammy Mclnerney
Secretary
New Milford Board of Education



